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MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: Dane County Zoning & Land 

Regulation Committee 
 

   
DATE: February 20, 2018 
   
RE: Petition for Revocation of  Conditional Use Permit 2175, 

Kirk Eilenfeldt / Rocky Rights, LLC, for Mineral Extraction 
 
 
Axley Brynelson, LLP represents Rocky Rights, LLC relative to its operations in the 
Town of Cottage Grove.  This memo addresses a written request from counsel for 
Alex and Jamie Tukiendorf to initiate revocation process for CUP No. 2175 for a 
concrete batch plant.  That request should be denied without further proceedings.   
 
There is separately pending an application for a new CUP for mineral extraction 
(No. 2405) on real estate to the north of Rocky Right’s existing operation.  The two 
matters are legally distinct.  They are separate CUPs for distinct land uses.  The 
Tukiendorf’s efforts to combine the two CUPs should be disregarded.   
 
With respect to the Tukiendorfs’ complaints, we note the following: 
 

1. Per 2017 Wisconsin Act 67, conditional use permitting decisions must 
be based on “substantial evidence” – which “means facts or 
information, other than merely personal preferences or speculation, 
directly pertaining to the requirements or conditions an applicant must 
meet to obtain a conditional use permit and that reasonable persons 
would accept in support of a conclusion.”  Wis. Stat. §§ 60.62(4e)(a)2, 
62.23(7)(de)1.b.   

2. Per 2017 Act 67, once granted, a CUP “shall remain in effect as long as 
the conditions upon which the permit was issued are followed…”  Wis. 
Stat. §§ 60.62(4e)(d), 62.23(7)(de)4.   
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3. As further discussed below, there is no substantial evidence to justify 
procedures to revoke CUP 2175.  Moreover, there is no substantial 
evidence that the original conditions have not been followed.   

4. This is an ideal site for this land use.  It is adjacent to aggregate reserves 
(legal non-conforming site).  It has access directly onto US Hwy 12/18.  
It has far less impact on adjacent land uses than most other aggregate 
operations in Dane County.   

5. There have been multiple complaints over the years from the 
Tukiendorfs, none of which have been deemed substantial by Dane 
County Zoning Staff. 

6. The Tukiendorfs purchased their property in 2005.  The site was a 
documented non-conforming quarry at that time.  Moreover, it was an 
active site.  There was ample evidence to make the Tukiendorfs aware 
that they were buying a property subject to quarrying, truck traffic, and 
related issues.   

7. The Town of Cottage Grove has not joined or otherwise supported this 
single landowner’s complaint about the Batch Plant operation. 

8. The operator remains in compliance with the original six (6) conditions 
for the CUP.  Nothing has changed since the inception of the CUP to 
impact these conditions.  The County found that each was satisfactorily 
met at the outset.  There is no basis today to find otherwise.  There is 
no danger to public health safety and welfare.  There is no legitimate 
evidence of “substantial impairment” of the use, value and enjoyment 
of property.  (See MacWilliams report).  There is likewise no legitimate 
impairment to normal development of the surrounding property.   

9. The operator is in compliance with the twelve (12) conditions dating to 
the 2011 issuance of the permit.  There does not appear to be any good 
faith argument to the contrary.  The self-interested opinions of the 
Tukiendorfs, that dust, noise, or traffic is bothersome to them, is not 
sufficient to take any adverse action here.   

10. There is no reclamation permit violation.  There is no record of such 
violation by the regulatory authority.  The Tukiendorf’s are not the 
regulating authority.  It is common practice not to reclaim while 
aggregate continues to be extracted.  The insertion of a proposed future 
date to reclaim is simply a proposal, not a deadline after which mining 
must stop and reclamation begins.  Moreover, the May 15, 2012 Memo 
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by Jerney Balousek confirms that all disturned areas must be 
permanently seeded and mulched by September 15, 2037.  (See 
Attachment 2 to Pines Bach submission)   

11. There is also an allegation made about avoiding highway work.  This 
allegation is contradicted by the reserved right in the CUP for up to 30 
nights per year of night work.  There was no reason for that provision 
except to deal with highway projects.  While no immediate plans 
existed in 2011, opportunities arise over time, and the CUP allowed for 
night work with reasonable limits.   

12. Submitted herewith is an appraisal report from Scott MacWilliams, a 
licensed real estate appraiser in the State of Wisconsin, documenting 
the property valuation stability for the subject property.  Operator 
reserves the right to additionally submit an appraisal review of the Craig 
Hungerford Report submitted by the Tukiendorfs.  Mr. Hungerford is 
not a licensed appraiser in Wisconsin.  His finding that the highest and 
best use of the Tukiendorf property is industrial cannot be justified.  The 
land is currently in a residential use, is zoned residential, is planned 
residential, and is adjacent to a small residential land division.  There is 
no basis to convert this property to industrial.   

13. Submitted herewith for the record are additional documents which 
support the overall project and demonstrate past history of compliance.   

For all of the foregoing reasons, we respectfully request the ZLR make a finding that 
there is not a sufficient basis to further investigate this complaint, and no basis exists 
to hold a hearing to address this further.   
 
We look forward to meeting with you. 
 
____________________ 
Charles V. Sweeney 
Mitchell R. Olson 
Axley Brynelson, LLP 
Attorneys for Rocky Rights, LLC 

 


















































































































